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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K /A

December 31, 2003

Page No.

PART II

Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation 1

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K 11

SIGNATURES AND CERTIFICATIONS 12

Explanatory Note:

Item 7 listed above is hereby amended by deleting the Item in its entirety and replacing it with the corresponding Item attached hereto and filed
herewith. Item 15 listed above is hereby amended by replacing the specified portions indicated herein.

The purpose of this Amendment is to make certain changes to the above referenced Items in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003 that was originally filed on March 31, 2004 (the �Original Filing�). We are filing this amended Annual Report on
Form 10-K/A in response to comments received from the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�) in connection with our Registration
Statement on Form S-3 filed on September 30, 2003. This report continues to speak as of the date of the Original Filing and we have not updated
the disclosure in this report to speak to any later date. While this report primarily relates to the historical period covered, events may have taken
place since the date of the Original Filing that might have been reflected in this report if they had taken place prior to the Original Filing.

Any items in the Original Filing not expressly changed hereby shall be as set forth in the Original Filing. All information contained in this
Amendment and the Original Filing is subject to updating and supplementing as provided in the Company�s periodic reports filed with the SEC
subsequent to the date of such reports.

i
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PART II

AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Results of Operations

2003 Compared with 2002:

2003 2002 Change

Net sales:
Crop $ 104,895,000 $ 79,271,000 $ 25,624,000
Non-crop 19,968,000 21,400,000 (1,432,000)

$ 124,863,000 $ 100,671,000 $ 24,192,000

Gross profit:
Crop $ 47,932,000 $ 32,834,000 $ 15,098,000
Non-crop 10,942,000 11,041,000 (99,000)

$ 58,874,000 $ 43,875,000 $ 14,999,000

The Company reported net income of $10,263,000 or $1.10 per diluted share in 2003 as compared to net income of $7,049,000 or $.78 per
diluted share in 2002. (Net income per share data have been restated to reflect the effect of a 3 for 2 stock split that will be distributed on April
16, 2004.)

Net sales in 2003 increased by 24% to $124,863,000 from $100,671,000 in 2002. The record sales levels were as a result of increased sales
(primarily attributable to higher sales volume) of the Company�s product lines used for crop protection. Specifically, increased sales of the
Company�s insecticides, soil fumigants, molluscicides, and plant growth regulators product lines more than offset a decline in sales of the
Company�s defoliant and fungicide product lines, resulting in the overall increase in net sales. There were no unusual or infrequent events or
transactions outside of the ordinary course of business, which materially impact net sales.

Net sales in 2002 increased by 21% or $17,544,000 to $100,671,000 from $83,127,000 in 2001 (primarily attributable to higher sales volume).
Sales of the Company�s crop product lines increased 19% or $12,896,000 to $79,271,000 in 2002 from $66,375,000 in 2001, while sales of the
Company�s non-crop product lines increased by 28% or $4,648,000 to $21,400,000 in 2002 as compared to $16,752,000 in 2001. Increased sales
of the Company�s insecticides, soil fumigants, and defoliant product lines more than offset a decline in the Company�s fungicide and plant growth
regulators product lines. There were no unusual or infrequent events or transactions outside of the ordinary course of business, which materially
impact net sales.
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Gross profits increased $14,999,000 to $58,874,000 in 2003 from $43,875,000 in 2002. Gross profit margins increased to 47% in 2003 from
44% in 2002. The improvement in gross profit margins was due to the changes in the sales mix of the Company�s products.

Gross profit margins may not be comparable to those of other companies, since some companies include their distribution network in cost of
goods sold and the Company, as well as others, include distribution costs in operating expenses (or other line items other than cost of goods
sold).

Operating expenses, which are net of other income and expenses, increased by $10,336,000 to $42,332,000 in 2003 from $31,996,000 in 2002.
Operating expenses as a percentage of sales were 34% in 2003 as compared to 32% in 2002. The differences in operating expenses by specific
departmental costs are as follows:

� Selling expenses increased by $5,602,000 to $16,278,000 in 2003 from $10,676,000 in 2002. The increase was due primarily to
increased variable selling expenses that relate to both increased sales levels and the product mix of sales.

� General and administrative increased by $1,000,000 to $9,427,000 in 2003 as compared to $8,427,000 in 2002. The increase was due
to increases in expenses related to the amortization of intangible assets in connection with new asset acquisitions in 2003 and
increased payroll and payroll related costs.

1
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� Research and product development costs and regulatory registration expenses increased by $2,008,000 to $7,725,000 in 2003 from
$5,717,000 in 2002. The increase was a result of increases in costs incurred to generate scientific data related to the registration and
possible new uses of the Company�s products (which accounted for approximately 85% of the increase) and increased payroll and
payroll related costs.

� Freight, delivery and warehousing costs increased $1,726,000 to $8,902,000 in 2003 as compared to $7,176,000 in 2002 due to the
increased sales levels.

Interest costs before capitalized interest and interest income remained virtually unchanged at $986,000 in 2003 as compared to $973,000 in
2002. The Company recorded $303,000 in interest income in 2003, which primarily relates to income taxes receivable from the state of
California as a result of filing amended tax returns for the years ended December 31, 1995 through 1998. (The overall after tax effect of
recording the tax benefit due from California (franchise tax) generated $.033 per diluted share in 2003. The refund was received in July 2003.)
The Company capitalized $323,000 of interest costs related to construction in progress during 2003 as compared to $347,000 in 2002.

Income tax expense increased by $1,690,000 to $5,919,000 in 2003 as compared to $4,229,000 in 2002. The Company�s effective tax rate was
36.6% in 2003 as compared to 37.5% in 2002. (See note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional analysis of the changes in
income tax expense.)

Weather patterns can have an impact on the Company�s operations. Weather conditions influence pest population by impacting gestation cycles
for particular pests and the effectiveness of some of the Company�s products, among other factors. The end user of some of the Company�s
products may, because of weather patterns, delay or intermittently disrupt field work during the planting season which may result in a reduction
of the use of some of the Company�s products. During 2003, weather patterns did not have a material adverse effect on the Company�s results of
operations.

Because of elements inherent to the Company�s business, such as differing and unpredictable weather patterns, crop growing cycles, changes in
product mix of sales, ordering patterns that may vary in timing, and promotional programs, measuring the Company�s performance on a quarterly
basis, (gross profit margins on a quarterly basis may vary significantly) even when such comparisons are favorable, is not as meaningful an
indicator as full-year comparisons. The primary reason is that the use cycles do not necessarily coincide with financial reporting cycles. Because
of the Company�s cost structure, the combination of variable revenue streams, and the changing product mixes, results in varying quarterly levels
of profitability.

Results of Operations

2002 Compared with 2001:

2002 2001 Change

Net sales:
Crop $ 79,271,000 $ 66,375,000 $ 12,896,000
Non-crop 21,400,000 16,752,000 4,648,000

$ 100,671,000 $ 83,127,000 $ 17,544,000
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Gross profit:
Crop $ 32,834,000 $ 29,369,000 $ 3,465,000
Non-crop 11,041,000 8,562,000 2,479,000

$ 43,875,000 $ 37,931,000 $ 5,944,000

The Company reported net income of $7,049,000 or $.78 per diluted share in 2002 as compared to net income of $5,639,000 or $.64 per diluted
share in 2001. (Net income per share data have been restated to reflect the effect for all stock splits.)

Net sales in 2002 increased by 21% or $17,544,000 to $100,671,000 from $83,127,000 in 2001 (primarily attributable to higher sales volume).
Sales of the Company�s crop product lines increased 19% or $12,896,000 to $79,271,000 in 2002 from $66,375,000 in 2001, while sales of the
Company�s non-crop product lines increased by 28% or $4,648,000 to $21,400,000 in 2002 as compared to $16,752,000 in 2001. There were no
unusual or infrequent events or transactions outside of the ordinary course of business which materially impact net sales.

Gross profits increased $5,944,000 to $43,875,000 in 2002 from $37,931,000 in 2001. Gross profit margins declined to 44% in 2002 from 46%
in 2001. The reduction in gross profit margins was due to the changes in the sales mix of the Company�s products.

2

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN VANGUARD CORP - Form 10-K/A

7



Gross profit margins may not be comparable to those of other companies, since some companies include their distribution network in cost of
goods sold and the Company, as well as others, include distribution costs in operating expenses (or other line items other than cost of goods
sold).

Operating expenses, which are net of other income and expenses, increased by $3,670,000 to $31,996,000 in 2002 from $28,326,000 in 2001.
Operating expenses as a percentage of sales were 32% in 2002 as compared to 34% in 2001. The differences in operating expenses by specific
departmental costs are as follows:

� Selling expenses increased by $1,406,000 to $10,676,000 in 2002 from $9,270,000 in 2001. The increase was due primarily to
increased variable selling expenses that relate to both increased sales levels and the product mix of sales, as well as, increases in
payroll and payroll related items.

� General and administrative increased by $906,000 to $8,427,000 in 2002 as compared to $7,521,000 in 2001. The increase was due to
increases in outside professional fees (primarily legal), coupled with the fact that the same period in 2001 realized the benefit of
certain costs that were capitalized in the re-commissioning of the Company�s Axis, Alabama facility.

� Research and product development costs and regulatory registration expenses increased by $770,000 to $5,717,000 in 2002 from
$4,947,000 in 2001. The increase was a result of increases in costs incurred to generate scientific data related to the registration and
possible new uses of the Company�s products.

� Freight, delivery and warehousing costs increased $588,000 to $7,176,000 in 2002 as compared to $6,588,000 in 2001 due to the
increased sales levels.

In 1986, the Company constructed an incinerator to destroy a waste gas that had been previously discharged to the atmosphere pursuant to an air
permit. By reducing this emission, the Company was entitled to transfer a portion of its emission credits to others. The Company recognized a
net gain before taxes of $466,000 in 2001 as a result of sales of a portion of its credits.

The Company settled negotiations with an insurance carrier related to the recovery of certain costs pertaining to the completed remediation work
of a railroad siding which resulted in a net gain before taxes of $208,000 in 2001. The Company also settled a dispute over data compensation
which resulted in a net gain before taxes of $88,000 in 2001.

Interest costs before capitalized interest and interest income were $973,000 in 2002 as compared to $1,363,000 in 2001. Lower effective interest
rates coupled with lower overall debt levels resulted in the decline in interest costs. The Company capitalized $347,000 of interest costs related
to the re-commissioning the Company�s Axis, Alabama facility in 2002. (See note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Income tax expense increased by $845,000 to $4,229,000 in 2002 as compared to $3,384,000 in 2001. The Company�s effective tax rate
remained unchanged at 37.5%. (See note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional analysis of the changes in income tax
expense.)

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor
to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor�s Products (�EITF 01-9�). Upon adoption of EITF 01-9, the Company was required to classify certain
payments to its customers as a reduction of sales. The Company previously classified certain of these payments as operating expenses in the
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consolidated statement of income. The amounts reclassified resulted in a reduction of net sales (and an offsetting reduction of operating
expenses) of $3,649,000 in 2002 and $3,889,000 in 2001. Additionally, the Company engages in various customer programs. The Company
accounts for these programs as operating expenses in accordance with EITF 01-9 as the Company receives an identifiable benefit in exchange
for the consideration. Amounts charged to operating expenses were $2,222,000 in 2002 and $1,761,000 in 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating activities provided $4,424,000 of cash during the year ended December 31, 2003. Net income of $10,263,000, non-cash depreciation
and amortization of $4,053,000 and an increase in trade payables, other payables and accrued expenses and deferred income taxes of $7,872,000,
$4,754,000 and $833,000, respectively, provided $27,775,000 of cash for operations. Increases in receivables, inventories and prepaid expenses
of $11,003,000, $12,161,000 and $187,000 respectively used $23,351,000 in of cash for operating activities.

3
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The Company used $10,641,000 in investing activities in 2003. It invested $10,726,000 in the acquisition of new products (of which, $5,926,000
was disbursed in cash) and $4,448,000 in capital expenditures while other non-current assets declined by $267,000.

Financing activities provided $3,764,000 during 2003. Net borrowing under the Company�s fully-secured revolving line of credit increased by
$6,200,000. The Company made payments on its debt of $2,199,000, received $778,000 from the issuance of common stock, paid cash
dividends of $807,000 and purchased treasury stock for $208,000.

In May 2001, the Company announced that Amvac Chemical Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the
acquisition of a manufacturing facility from E.I. Du Pont de Nemours and Company (�DuPont�). The facility, termed Amvac Axis, Alabama
(�AAA�) is one of three such units located on DuPont�s five hundred and ten acre complex in Axis, Alabama. The acquisition of AAA consisted of
a long-term ground lease of twenty-five acres and the purchase of all improvements thereon. AAA is a multipurpose plant designed primarily to
manufacture pyrethroids and organophosphates, including Fortress®, a corn soil insecticide that the Company purchased from DuPont in 2000.
The acquisition of AAA increased the Company�s capacity while also providing flexibility and geographic diversity. Management believes, as
the Company looks to acquire additional product lines, AAA will allow the Company to produce compounds that could not be manufactured at
the Company�s Los Angeles (Commerce, California) facility and will further complement the Company�s toll manufacturing capabilities. The
Company began the commissioning phase of AAA during the third quarter of 2001 and this facility was placed in service in May 2003. The
Company intends to focus its efforts, in addition to acquiring new product lines and expanding the use of its current products, on discussions
with companies that in this time of consolidation in the Company�s industry, may be interested in utilizing the Company�s toll manufacturing
capabilities of AAA.

In May 2002, the Company entered into a new $45,000,000 fully-secured long-term credit agreement. The Company�s primary bank (the �Bank�)
acted as sole administrative agent arranger and syndication agent. The Bank syndicated the new credit facility with another bank. The
$45,000,000 credit facility consists of a senior secured revolving line of credit of $35,000,000 and a $10,000,000 senior secured term loan. The
borrowings under the credit agreement bear interest at the prime rate (�Referenced Loans�), or at the Company�s option, a fixed rate of interest
offered by the Bank (�Fixed Loans�) for terms of one, two, three, six, nine or twelve months. Interest on the Referenced Loans are payable
quarterly, in arrears, on the last day of each March, June, September, and December, and on the maturity date of such loan in the amount of
interest then accrued but unpaid. Interest on the Fixed Loans are payable on the last day of the interest period, provided that, with an interest
period longer than three months, interest is payable on the last day of each three-month period after the commencement of such interest period.
The senior secured revolving line of credit matures on May 31, 2005. The term loan matures on May 31, 2007. The principal payments of the
term loan are payable in equal quarterly installments of $625,000 each, on or before the last business day of each February, May, August and
November, commencing May 31, 2003 and in one final installment in the amount necessary to repay the remaining outstanding principal balance
of the term loan in full on the maturity date.

Management continues to believe, to continue to improve its working capital position and maintain flexibility in financing interim needs, it is
prudent to explore all available sources of financing.

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The following summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2003 and the effects such obligations are expected to have on liquidity
and cash flow in future periods:

Payments Due by Period

Total Less than 1�3 4�5 After
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1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Long-term debt $ 14,316,000 $ 6,374,000 $ 7,317,000 $ 625,000 $ 0
Note payable to bank 14,200,000 0 14,200,000 0 0
Accrued royalty obligations 1,521,000 1,521,000 0 0 0
Employment agreement(s) 2,255,000 667,000 1,141,000 447,000 0
Operating leases 1,491,000 255,000 489,000 534,000 213,000

$ 33,783,000 $ 8,817,000 $ 23,147,000 $ 1,606,000 $ 213,000

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (�SFAS 146�), effective for exit or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, SFAS 146 addresses the financial accounting and reporting for certain costs associated with
exit or disposal activities, including restructuring actions. SFAS 146 excludes from its scope

4

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN VANGUARD CORP - Form 10-K/A

11



severance benefits that are subject to an on-going benefit arrangement governed by SFAS 112, Employer�s Accounting for Post employment
Benefits, and asset impairments governed by SFAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. The adoption of
SFAS 146 did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (�FIN 45�) Guarantor�s Accounting and Disclosure Requirement for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. This Interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a
guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a
guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the
guarantee. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The following is a summary of the Company�s agreements that the Company has determined is
within the scope of FIN 45.

Under its bylaws, the Company has agreed to indemnify its officers and directors for certain events or occurrences arising as a result of the
officer or director�s serving in such capacity. The term of the indemnification period is for the officer�s or director�s lifetime. The maximum
potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited. However, the
Company has a directors� and officers� liability insurance policy that reduces its exposure and enables it to recover a portion of any future
amounts paid. As a result of its insurance policy coverage, the Company believes the estimated fair value of these indemnification agreements is
minimal and has no liability recorded for these agreements as of December 31, 2003.

The Company enters into indemnification provisions under its agreements with other companies in its ordinary course of business (typically
customers). Under these provisions the Company generally indemnifies and holds harmless the indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred
by the indemnified party as a result of the Company�s activities or, in some cases, as a result of the indemnified party�s activities under the
agreement. The indemnification provisions may survive the termination of the underlying agreement. In addition, in some cases, the Company
has agreed to reimburse employees for certain expenses and to provide salary continuation during short-term disability. The maximum potential
amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification provisions may be unlimited. The Company has
not incurred material costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnification provisions. As a result, the Company believes the
estimated fair value of these provisions is minimal. Accordingly, the Company has no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of December
31, 2003.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation�an Amendment of SFAS No. 123 (�SFAS 148�).
This statement amends SFAS No. 123 to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this statement amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require
prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Company adopted SFAS 148 on January 1, 2003, and has elected to continue to use
the intrinsic method to account for employee stock options and accordingly, the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s
financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (�FIN 46�). This Interpretation requires
that variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and variable interest entities in which an interest is obtained after that date, be
evaluated for consolidation into an entity�s financial statements. This interpretation also applies, beginning July 1, 2003 for the Company, to all
variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds an interest that it acquired before February 1, 2003. The company has adopted this
statement and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity, (�SFAS
150�) which establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities
and equity. SFAS 150 requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope, which may have previously been reported as
equity, as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). This statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May
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31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003 for public companies. The
Company adopted SFAS 150 on July 1, 2003. The adoption of SFAS 150 did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial statements.

In December 2003, the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) issued staff accounting bulletin No. 104 (�SAB 104�) �Revenue Recognition,�
which codifies, revises and rescinds certain sections of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 �Revenue Recognition,� in order to make this
interpretive guidance consistent with current authoritative accounting guidance and SEC rules and regulations. The changes noted in SAB 104
did not have a material effect on the Company�s financial statements.

5
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In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (�EITF�) issued Issue No. 00-21, �Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables�. This issue addresses determination of whether an arrangement involving more than one deliverable contains more than one unit
of accounting and how arrangement consideration should be measured and allocated to the separate units of accounting. EITF Issue No. 00-21 is
effective for revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal quarters beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company adopted this issue on July 1, 2003
and the adoption had no material impact on our operating results or financial position.

Foreign Exchange

Management does not believe that the fluctuation in the value of the dollar in relation to the currencies of its customers in the last three fiscal
years has adversely affected the Company�s ability to sell products at agreed upon prices denominated in U.S. dollars. No assurance can be given,
however, that adverse currency exchange rate fluctuations will not occur in the future. Should adverse currency exchange rate fluctuations occur
in geographies where the Company sells/exports its products, management is not certain such fluctuations will materially impact the Company�s
operating results.

Inflation

Management believes inflation has not had a significant impact on the Company�s operations during the past three years.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company�s accounting policies are more fully described preceding the Company�s consolidated financial statements. Certain of the
Company�s policies require the application of judgment by management in selecting the appropriate assumptions for calculating financial
estimates. These judgments are based on historical experience, terms of existing contracts, commonly accepted industry practices and other
assumptions that the Company believes are reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and
the effects of revisions are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The Company�s critical accounting polices and estimates include:

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales is recognized at the time title and the risks of ownership passes. This is when the customer has made the fixed commitment
to purchase the goods, the products are shipped per the customers� instructions, the sales price is determinable, and collection is reasonably
assured.

Programs

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor
to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor�s Products (�EITF 01-9�). Upon adoption of EITF 01-9, the Company was required to classify certain
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payments to its customers as a reduction of sales. The Company previously classified certain of these payments as operating expenses in the
consolidated statement of income. The amounts reclassified resulted in a reduction of net sales (and an offsetting reduction of operating
expenses) of $3,649,100 in 2002 and $3,888,600 in 2001. Additionally, the Company engages in various customer programs. The Company
accounts for these programs as operating expenses in accordance with EITF 01-9 as the Company receives an identifiable benefit in exchange
for the consideration. Amounts charged to operating expenses were $2,222,000 in 2002 and $1,760,500 in 2001.

Advertising Expense

The Company expenses advertising costs in the period incurred. Advertising expenses, which include promotional costs, is recognized in
operating costs (specifically in selling expenses) in the consolidated statements of income and was $1,207,000 in 2003, $570,000 in 2002 and
$503,000 in 2001.

Cost of Goods Sold

In addition to normal centers (i.e., direct labor, raw materials) of cost of goods sold, the Company includes such cost centers as Health and
Safety, Environmental, Maintenance and Quality Control in cost of goods sold.

6
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Other Than Cost of Goods Sold�Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include such cost centers as Selling, General and Administrative, Research and Product Development,
Regulatory/Registration, Freight, Delivery and Warehousing in operating expenses.

Freight, Delivery and Warehousing Expense

Freight, delivery and warehousing costs incurred by the Company are reported as operating expenses. All amounts billed to a customer in a sales
transaction related to freight, delivery and warehousing are recorded as a reduction in operating expenses. Freight, delivery and warehousing
costs were $8,902,000 in 2003, $7,176,000 in 2003 and $6,588,000 in 2001.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Long-lived Assets

The carrying value of long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of such assets may not be recoverable. Measurement of the impairment loss is based on the fair value of the asset. Generally, fair value
will be determined using valuation techniques such as the present value of expected future cash flows.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment includes the cost of land, buildings, machinery and equipment, office furniture and fixtures, automobiles, and
construction projects and significant improvements to existing plant and equipment. Interest costs related to significant construction projects
may be capitalized at the Company�s weighted average cost of capital. Expenditures for maintenance and minor repairs are expensed as incurred.
When property or equipment is sold or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation is removed from the respective
accounts and the gain or loss realized on disposition is reflected in earnings. All plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line
method, utilizing estimated useful property lives. Building lives range from 10 to 30 years; machinery and equipment lives range from 3 to 15
years; office furniture and fixture lives range from 3 to 10 years, automobile lives range from 3 to 6 years; construction projects and significant
improvements to existing plant and equipment lives range from 3 to 15 years when placed in service.

Foreign Currency Translation
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Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries, where the local currency is the functional currency, have been translated at year end exchange rates
and profit and loss accounts have been translated using weighted average yearly exchange rates. Adjustments resulting from translation have
been recorded in the equity section of the balance sheet as cumulative translation adjustments in other comprehensive income.

The effect of foreign currency exchange gains and losses on transactions that are denominated in currencies other that the entity�s functional
currency are remeasured into the functional currency using the end of the period exchange rates. The effects of remeasurement related to foreign
currency transactions are included in current profit and loss accounts.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash, receivables and accounts payable approximate their fair values because of the short maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of the Company�s long-term debt and note payable to bank is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar
issues or on the current rates offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities. Such fair value approximates the respective
carrying values of the Company�s long-term debt and note payable to bank.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method to account for income taxes, including recognition of deferred tax assets for the anticipated
future tax consequences attributable to differences between financial statement amounts and their respective tax bases. Income tax expense is
recognized currently for taxes payable. The Company reviews its deferred tax assets for recovery. A valuation allowance is established when the
Company believes that it is more likely than not that some portion of its deferred tax assets will not be realized. Changes in valuation allowances
from period to period are included in the Company�s tax provision in the period of change.

7
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The primary identifiable intangible assets of the Company relate to product rights associated with its product acquisitions. The Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under the
provisions of SFAS No. 142, identifiable intangibles with finite lives are amortized and those with indefinite lives are not amortized. The
estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset to the Company is based upon a number of factors including the effects of demand,
competition, and expected changes in the marketability of the Company�s products. The Company tests identifiable intangible assets for
impairment at least annually, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows. Identifiable
intangible assets that are subject to amortization are evaluated for impairment using a process similar to that used to evaluate elements of
property. The impairment test for identifiable intangible assets not subject to amortization consists of a comparison of the fair value of the
intangible asset with its carrying amount. An impairment loss, if any, is recognized for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair
value of the asset. Fair value is typically estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis, which requires the Company to estimate the future
cash flows anticipated to be generated by the particular asset(s) being tested for impairment as well as select a discount rate to measure the
present value of the anticipated cash flows. When determining future cash flow estimates, the Company considers historical results adjusted to
reflect current and anticipated operating conditions. Estimating future cash flows requires significant judgment by the Company in such areas as
future economic conditions, industry-specific conditions, product pricing and necessary capital expenditures. The use of different assumptions or
estimates for future cash flows could produce different impairment amounts (or none at all) for long-lived assets, goodwill and identifiable
intangible assets. As of January 1, 2002, the Company had an immaterial amount of goodwill and amortization related to the goodwill. As such,
the adoption of SFAS 142, did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial statements.

Risk Factors

The Company�s business may be adversely affected by cyclical and seasonal effects.

The chemical industry in general is cyclical and demands for its products tend to be slightly seasonal. Seasonal usage follows varying
agricultural seasonal patterns, weather conditions and weather related pressure from pests, and customer marketing programs and requirements.
Weather patterns can have an impact on the Company�s operations. The end user of some of its products may, because of weather patterns, delay
or intermittently disrupt field work during the planting season which may result in a reduction of the use of some products and therefore reduce
our revenues and profitability. There can be no assurance that the Company will adequately address any adverse seasonal effects.

The industry in which the Company does business is extremely competitive and its business may suffer if the Company is unable to compete
effectively.

Generally, the treatment against pests of any kind is broad in scope, there being more than one way or one product for treatment, eradication, or
suppression. The Company faces competition from many domestic and foreign manufacturers, marketers and distributors participating in its
marketplace. Competition in the marketplace is based primarily on efficacy, price, safety and ease of application. Many of the Company�s
competitors are larger and have substantially greater financial and technical resources. The Company�s ability to compete depends on its ability
to develop additional applications for its current products, and to expand its product lines and customer base. The Company competes principally
on the basis of the quality of its products, and the technical service and support given to its customers. There can be no assurance that the
Company will compete successfully with existing competitors or with any new competitors.

If the Company is unable to successfully position itself in smaller niche markets, its business may be adversely affected.
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The Company has attempted to position itself in smaller niche markets that have been or are being abandoned by larger chemical companies.
These types of markets tend not to attract larger chemical companies due to the smaller volume demand. As a result, larger chemical companies
have been divesting themselves of products that fall into such smaller niche markets. These smaller niche markets require significant and
intensive management input and ongoing product research and are near product maturity. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
successful in these smaller niche markets or, if it is successful in one or more niche markets, that it will continue to be successful in such niche
markets.

8
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The manufacturing of the Company�s products is subject to governmental regulations.

The Company operates two manufacturing facilities�one in Los Angeles, California and the other in Axis, Alabama (the �Facilities�). The Facilities
operate under the terms and conditions imposed by required licenses and permits by state and local authorities. The manufacturing of key
ingredients for the Company�s products occurs at the Facilities. An inability to renew or maintain a license or permit or if the fees for such
licenses or permits were increased significantly, wither would impede the Company�s access to key ingredients and the cost of production would
increase, either of which would materially and adversely affect the Company�s ability to provide its products in a timely and affordable manner.

The distribution and sale of the Company�s products are subject to prior governmental approvals and thereafter ongoing governmental
regulation.

The Company�s products are subject to laws administered by federal, state and foreign governments, including regulations requiring registration,
approval and labeling of its products. The labeling requirements restrict the use of and type of application for our products. More stringent
restrictions could make our products less desirable which would adversely affect our revenues and profitability. Substantially all of the
Company�s products are subject to the United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) registration and re-registration requirements,
and are conditionally registered in accordance with the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (�FIFRA�). Such registration
requirements are based, among other things, on data demonstrating that the product will not cause unreasonable adverse effects on human health
or the environment when used according to approved label directions. All states where any of the Company�s products are used also require
registration before they can be marketed or used in that state. Governmental regulatory authorities have required, and may require in the future,
that certain scientific data requirements be performed on the Company�s products. The Company, on its behalf and in joint efforts with other
registrants, have and are currently furnishing certain required data relative to its products. Under FIFRA, the federal government requires
registrants to submit a wide range of scientific data to support U.S. registrations. This requirement has significantly increased the Company�s
operating expenses in such areas as testing and the production of new products. The Company expects such increases to continue in the future.
Because scientific analyses are constantly improving, it cannot be determined with certainty whether or not new or additional tests may be
required by regulatory authorities. Responding to such requirements may cause delays in the sales of our products which delays would adversely
affect our profitability. While FIFRA Good Laboratory Practice standards specify the minimum practices and procedures which must be
followed in order to ensure the quality and integrity of data related to these tests submitted to the U.S. EPA, there can be no assurance the EPA
will not request certain tests or studies be repeated. In addition, more stringent legislation or requirements may be imposed in the future. The
Company can provide no assurance that any testing approvals or registrations will be granted on a timely basis, if at all, or that its resources will
be adequate to meet the costs of regulatory compliance.

The Company may be subject to environmental liabilities.

The Company, its facilities and its products are subject to numerous federal and state laws and governmental regulations concerning
environmental matters and employee health and safety. The Company continually adapts its manufacturing process to the environmental control
standards of the various regulatory agencies. The U.S. EPA and other federal and state agencies have the authority to promulgate regulations that
could have a material adverse impact on the Company�s operations. The Company expends substantial funds to minimize the discharge of
materials in the environment and to comply with governmental regulations relating to protection of the environment. Federal and state
authorities may seek fines and penalties for violation of the various laws and governmental regulations, and could, among other things, impose
liability on the Company for cleaning up the damage resulting from release of pesticides and other agents into the environment.

The Company�s use of hazardous materials exposes it to potential liabilities.
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The Company�s development and manufacturing of chemical products involve the controlled use of hazardous materials. While the Company
continually adapts its manufacturing process to the environmental control standards of regulatory authorities, it cannot completely eliminate the
risk of accidental contamination or injury from hazardous or regulated materials. In the event of such contamination or injury, the Company may
be held liable for significant damages or fines. In the event that such damages or fines are assessed, it could have a material adverse effect on the
Company�s financial and operating results.

The Company�s business may give rise to product liability claims not covered by insurance or indemnity agreements.

The manufacturing, marketing, distribution and use of chemical products involve substantial risk of product liability claims. A successful
product liability claim which is not insured may require the Company to pay substantial amounts of damages. In the event that such damages are
paid, it could have a material adverse effect on the Company�s financial and operating results.

9
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Adverse results in pending legal and regulatory proceedings could have adverse effects on the Company�s business.

The Company is currently involved in certain legal and regulatory proceedings, as described above. The Company has and will continue to
expend resources and incur expenses in connection with these proceedings. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in
these proceedings. An adverse determination in one or more of these proceedings could subject the Company to significant liabilities, which
could have a material adverse effect on its financial and operating results.

The Company�s future success will depend on its ability to develop additional applications for its products, and to expand its product lines
and customer base.

The Company has grown primarily by a strategy of acquiring mature product lines from larger competitors and expanding sales of these
products based on new applications and new users. The Company�s success will depend, in part, on its ability to develop additional applications
for its products, and to expand its product lines and customer base in a highly competitive market. There can be no assurance that the Company
will be successful in adequately addressing these development needs on a timely basis or that, if these developments are addressed, the Company
will be successful in the marketplace. In addition, there can be no assurance that products or technologies (e.g., genetic engineering) developed
by others will not render the Company�s products noncompetitive or obsolete which would have a material adverse effect on its financial and
operating results. Many of the mature product lines the Company has acquired from larger competitors were divested as a result of a merger
involving such large competitor.

The Company faces risks related to acquisitions of product lines.

The Company has expanded and intends to continue to expand its operations through the acquisition of additional product lines from these larger
competitors. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to identify, acquire or profitably manage additional product lines, or
successfully integrate any acquired product lines without substantial expenses, delays or other operational or financial problems. There is an
increasing trend in selling mature product lines through a competitive bid process. As a result, we may not be the successful bidder for a
desirable product, or, if successful, we may pay a higher price for such product than if there was no competitive bid process. Further,
acquisitions may involve a number of special risks or effects, including diversion of management�s attention, failure to retain key acquired
personnel, unanticipated events or circumstances, minimum purchase quantities, legal liabilities and amortization of acquired intangible assets
and other one-time or ongoing acquisition related expenses. Some or all of these special risks or effects could have a material adverse effect on
the Company�s financial and operating results. Client satisfaction or performance problems associated with a business or product line could have
a material adverse impact on the Company�s reputation. In addition, there can be no assurance that acquired product lines, if any, will achieve
anticipated revenues and earnings.

The Company relies on intellectual property which it may be unable to protect, or may be found to infringe the rights of others.

The Company�s proprietary product formulations are protected, to the extent possible, as trade secrets and, to a lesser extent, by patents and
trademarks. Most of the mature products that the Company has acquired which were patented are currently �off patent� because the patent has
expired. The Company can provide no assurance that the way it protects its proprietary rights will be adequate or that its competitors will not
independently develop similar or competing products.

Further, the Company can provide no assurance that its is not infringing other parties� rights. Any claims could require the Company to spend
significant sums in litigation, pay damages, develop non-infringing intellectual property, or acquire licenses to the intellectual property which is
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the subject of asserted infringement.

The Company relies on key executives in large part for its success.

The Company�s success is highly dependent upon the efforts and abilities of its executive officers, particularly Eric G. Wintemute, its President
and Chief Executive Officer. Although Mr. Wintemute has entered into an employment agreement with the Company, this does not guarantee
that he will continue his employment. The loss of the services of Mr. Wintemute or other executive officers could have a material adverse effect
upon its financial and operating results.

Concentration of ownership among the Company�s Co-Chairmen of the Board of Directors may prevent new investors from influencing
significant corporate decisions.

As of March 22, 2004, Herbert A. Kraft and Glenn A. Wintemute, the Company�s Co-Chairmen of the Board of Directors, beneficially owned
approximately 17% and 12%, respectively, of the Company�s common stock. These stockholders as a group will be able to influence
substantially the Company�s Board of Directors and thus its management and affairs. If acting together, they would be able to influence most
matters requiring the approval by the Company�s stockholders, including the election of directors, any merger, consolidation or sale of all or
substantially all of the Company�s assets and any other significant corporate transaction. The concentration of ownership may also delay or
prevent a change in control if opposed by these stockholders irrespective of whether the proposed transaction is at a premium price or otherwise
beneficial to the Company�s stockholders as a whole.
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The Company�s stock price may be volatile and an investment in the Company�s stock could decline in value.

The market prices for securities of companies in the Company�s industry have been highly volatile and may continue to be highly volatile in the
future. Often this volatility is unrelated to operating performance of a company.

The Company�s business may be adversely affected by terrorist activities.

The Company�s business depends on the free flow of products and services through the channels of commerce. Recently, in response to terrorists�
activities and threats aimed at the United States, transportation, mail, financial and other services have been slowed or stopped altogether.
Further delays or stoppages in transportation, mail, financial or other services could have a material adverse effect on the business, results of
operations and financial condition. Furthermore, the Company may experience an increase in operating costs, such as costs for transportation,
insurance and security as a result of the activities and potential activities. The Company may also experience delays in receiving payments from
payers that have been affected by the terrorist activities and potential activities. The U.S. economy in general is being adversely affected by the
terrorist activities and potential activities and any economic downturn could adversely impact results of operations, impair the ability to raise
capital or otherwise adversely affect the ability to grow the business.

This report contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements relate to future periods and include descriptions of our plans,
objectives, and underlying assumptions for future operations, our market opportunities, our acquisition opportunities, and our ability to compete.
Generally, �may,� �could,� �will,� �would,� �expect,� �believe,� �estimate,� �anticipate,� �intend,� �continue� and similar words identify forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and are subject to risks and uncertainties that can cause actual results to differ
materially. For information on these risks and uncertainties, see the �Risk Factors� in this report. We urge you to consider these factors carefully in
evaluating the forward-looking statements contained in this report. Forward-looking statements are made only as of the date of this report.

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data:

Description Page No.

Financial Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 13

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 14

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001 15

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 16

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 18

(b) Exhibits:
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The exhibits listed on the accompanying Index To Exhibits, page 36 are filed as part of this annual report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, American Vanguard Corporation has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

(Registrant)

By: /s/ Eric G. Wintemute By: /s/ James A. Barry

Eric G. Wintemute

President, Chief Executive Officer

and Director

October 19, 2004

James A. Barry

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,

Secretary/Treasurer and Director

October 19, 2004
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2003 and 2002

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2003 2002

Assets (Note 3)
Current assets:
Cash $ 887 $ 3,275
Receivables:
Trade 27,803 16,975
Other 394 219

28,197 17,194

Inventories 33,389 21,228
Prepaid expenses 1,057 870
Deferred tax asset (note 4) 140 289
Income tax receivable (note 4) �  918

Total current assets 63,670 43,774
Property, plant and equipment, net (note 1) 21,677 19,984
Land held for development 211 211
Intangible assets 20,307 10,878
Other assets 869 601

$ 106,734 $ 75,448

Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
Current liabilities:
Current installments of long-term debt (note 2) $ 6,374 $ 1,949
Accounts payable 13,030 5,159
Accrued program costs 6,763 4,875
Accrued expenses and other payables 3,778 2,714
Accrued royalty obligations (notes 8 and 9) 1,521 1,215
Income taxes payable 580 �  

Total current liabilities 32,046 15,912
Long-term debt, excluding current installments (note 2) 7,942 9,765
Note payable to bank (note 3) 14,200 8,000
Deferred income taxes (note 4) 2,212 1,528

Total liabilities 56,400 35,205

Commitments and contingent liabilities (notes 2, 3, 5, 8 and 10)
Stockholders� equity: (notes 14 and 15)
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Preferred stock, $.10 par value per share; authorized 400,000 shares; none issued �  �  
Common stock, $.10 par value per share; authorized 10,000,000 shares; issued 9,764,415 shares in 2003 and
9,535,550 shares in 2002 976 954
Additional paid-in capital 9,933 9,177
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (207) (272)
Retained earnings 42,076 32,620

52,778 42,479
Less treasury stock, at cost, 824,881 shares in 2003 and 809,881 shares in 2002 (2,444) (2,236)

Total stockholders� equity 50,334 40,243

$ 106,734 $ 75,448

See summary of significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2003 2002 2001

Net sales (note 7) $ 124,863 $ 100,671 $ 83,127
Cost of sales 65,989 56,796 45,196

Gross profit 58,874 43,875 37,931
Operating expenses (note 11) 42,332 31,996 28,326
Settlement (income)/expense (notes 5 & 12) �  �  (296)
Gain on sale of emission credits (note 13) �  �  (466)

Operating income 16,542 11,879 10,367
Interest expense 986 973 1,363
Interest income (303) (25) (19)
Interest capitalized (323) (347) �  

Income before income taxes 16,182 11,278 9,023
Income taxes (note 4) 5,919 4,229 3,384

Net income $ 10,263 $ 7,049 $ 5,639

Earnings per common share (note 15) $ 1.16 $ 0.81 $ 0.66

Earnings per common share�assuming dilution (note 15) $ 1.10 $ 0.78 $ 0.64

Weighted average shares outstanding (note 15) 8,811,303 8,670,301 8,605,314

Weighted average shares outstanding�assuming dilution (note 15) 9,314,253 9,091,785 8,870,850

See summary of significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

Years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Common Stock
Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

Comprehensive
Income

Treasury Stock

TotalShares Amount Shares Amount

Balance, January 1, 2001 8,481,000 $ 848 $ 5,341 $ 24,355 $ �  �  604,840 $ (1,256) $ 29,288
Common stock dividend 10% 849,000 85 3,279 (3,364) �  �  �  �  �  
Cash dividends on common stock
($0.053 per share) �  �  �  (460) �  �  �  �  (460)
Treasury stock acquired �  �  �  �  �  �  158,604 (586) (586)
Stock options exercised 30,000 3 74 �  �  �  �  �  77
Net income �  �  �  5,639 �  5,639 �  �  5,639

Total comprehensive income �  �  �  �  �  $ 5,639 �  �  �  

Balance, December 31, 2001 9,360,000 936 8,694 26,170 �  �  763,444 (1,842) 33,958
Stocks issued under ESPP 36,661 4 170 �  �  �  �  �  174
Cash dividends on common stock
($0.069 per share) �  �  �  (599) �  �  �  �  (599)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net �  �  �  �  (272) (272) �  �  (272)
Treasury stock acquired �  �  �  �  �  �  46,305 (394) (394)
Stock options exercised 138,889 14 313 �  �  �  �  �  327
Net income �  �  �  7,049 �  7,049 �  �  7,049

Total comprehensive income �  �  �  �  �  $ 6,777 �  �  �  

Balance, December 31, 2002 9,535,550 954 9,177 32,620 (272) �  809,881 (2,236) 40,243
Stocks issued under ESPP 19,956 2 359 �  �  �  �  �  361
Cash dividends on common stock
($0.091 per share) �  �  �  (807) �  �  �  �  (807)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net �  �  �  �  65 65 �  �  65
Treasury stock acquired �  �  �  �  �  �  15,000 (208) (208)
Stock options exercised 208,909 20 397 �  �  �  �  �  417
Net income �  �  �  10,263 �  10,263 �  �  10,263

Total comprehensive income �  �  �  �  �  $ 10,328 �  �  �  

Balance, December 31, 2003 9,764,415 $ 976 $ 9,933 $ 42,076 $ (207) �  824,881 $ (2,444) $ 50,334
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See summary of significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(Dollars in thousands)

2003 2002 2001

Increase (decrease) in cash
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 10,263 $ 7,049 $ 5,639
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment 2,755 1,392 1,209
Amortization of other assets 1,298 945 935
Deferred income taxes 1,108 (715)
Changes in assets and liabilities associated with operations:
(Increase) decrease in receivables (11,003) (79) 5,735
Decrease (increase) in inventories (12,161) 2,802 (2,827)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (187) 276 (382)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 7,872 (4,241) 2,487
Increase (decrease) in other payables and accrued expenses 4,754 (1,093) 2,726

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,424 8,159 14,807

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (4,448) (7,978) (5,594)
Increase in intangible assets (5,926) (1,774) (269)
Other noncurrent assets (267) (69) (126)

Net cash used in investing activities (10,641) (9,821) (5,989)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net (repayments) borrowings under line of credit agreement 6,200 (4,200) (3,600)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt �  10,000 �  
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations (2,199) (952) (3,757)
Exercise of common stock options 778 501 76
Purchase of treasury stock (208) (394) (586)
Payment of cash dividends (807) (599) (459)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 3,764 4,356 (8,326)

Net increase (decrease) in cash (2,453) 2,694 492
Cash at beginning of year 3,275 853 361
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 65 (272) �  

Cash at end of year $ 887 $ 3,275 $ 853

Supplemental cash flow information:
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Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 996 $ 879 $ 1,334

Income taxes $ 3,620 $ 4,731 $ 4,492

See summary of significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:

On March 16, 2004, the Company announced that the Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $.12 per share ($.08) as adjusted for a 3 for
2 stock split as well as a 3 for 2 stock split. Both the cash dividend and stock split will be distributed on April 16, 2004 to stockholders of record
at the close of business on March 26, 2004. The cash dividend will be paid on the number of shares outstanding prior to the 3 for 2 stock split.
Stockholders entitled to fractional shares resulting from the stock split will receive cash in lieu of such fractional share based on the closing price
of the Company�s stock on March 26, 2004.

On April 11, 2003, the Company distributed 3,183,210 shares of common stock in connection with a 3 for 2 stock split to stockholders of record
as of March 28, 2003.

During 2003, The Company completed the acquisition of seven product lines, one used in the animal health business, one related to the herbicide
business and five related to a pre-harvest crop protection business. In connection with these acquisitions, the Company recorded intangible assets
in the amount of $10,726 of which $5,926 was paid in cash during the period.

On April 12, 2002, the Company distributed 1,435,512 shares of common stock in connection with a 4 for 3 stock split to stockholders of record
as of March 29, 2002.

On April 13, 2001, the Company distributed 565,734 shares of Common Stock in connection with a 10% Common Stock dividend to
stockholders of record as of March 30, 2001.

See summary of significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business and Basis of Consolidation

The Company is primarily a specialty chemical manufacturer that develops and markets safe and effective products for agricultural and
commercial uses. The Company manufacturers and formulates chemicals for crops, human and animal protection. The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of American Vanguard Corporation (�Company�) and its subsidiaries AMVAC Chemical Corporation (�AMVAC�),
GemChem, Inc. (�GemChem�), 2110 Davie Corporation (�DAVIE�), AMVAC Chemical UK Ltd., (�Chemical UK�) and Quimica Amvac de Mexico
S.A. de C.V. (�Quimica Amvac�), and Environmental Mediation, Inc. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation. The Company operates within a single operating segment.

Based on similar economic and operational characteristics, the Company�s business is aggregated into one reportable segment. Selective
enterprise information is as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Net sales:
Crop $ 104,895 $ 79,271 $ 66,375
Non-crop 19,968 21,400 16,752

$ 124,863 $ 100,671 $ 83,127

The Company�s subsidiary, GemChem, Inc., procures certain raw materials used in the Company�s manufacturing operations and is also a
distributor of various pharmaceutical and nutritional supplement products.

Because of elements inherent to the Company�s business, such as differing and unpredictable weather patterns, crop growing cycles, changes in
product mix of sales and ordering patterns that may vary in timing, measuring the Company�s performance on a quarterly basis, (gross profit
margins on a quarterly basis may vary significantly) even when such comparisons are favorable, is not as good an indicator as full-year
comparisons.

Advertising Expense
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The Company expenses advertising costs in the period incurred. Advertising expenses, which include promotional costs, is recognized in
operating costs (specifically in selling expenses) in the consolidated statements of income and was $1,207 in 2003, $570 in 2002 and $503 in
2001.

Cost of Goods Sold

In addition to normal centers (i.e., direct labor, raw materials) of cost of goods sold, the Company includes such cost centers as Health and
Safety, Environmental, Maintenance and Quality Control in cost of goods sold.

Other Than Cost of Goods Sold�Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include such cost centers as Selling, General and Administrative, Research and Product Development,
Regulatory/Registration, Freight, Delivery and Warehousing in operating expenses.

Freight, Delivery and Warehousing Expense

Freight, delivery and warehousing costs incurred by the Company are reported as operating expenses. All amounts billed to a customer in a sales
transaction related to freight, delivery and warehousing are recorded as a reduction in operating expenses. Freight, delivery and warehousing
costs were $8,902 in 2003, $7,176 in 2003 and $6,588 in 2001.
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES�(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.

The components of inventories consist of the following:

2003 2002

Finished products $ 30,159 $ 18,589
Raw materials 3,230 2,639

$ 33,389 $ 21,228

Long-lived Assets

The carrying value of long-lived assets is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of such assets may not be recoverable. Measurement of the impairment loss is based on the fair value of the asset. Generally, fair value will be
determined using valuation techniques such as the present value of expected future cash flows. Substantially all of the Company�s long-lived
assets are held domestically.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales is recognized at the time title and the risks of ownership passes. This is when the customer has made the fixed commitment
to purchase the goods, the products are shipped per the customers� instructions, the sales price is determinable, and collection is reasonably
assured.

Programs
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Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor
to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor�s Products (�EITF 01-9�). Upon adoption of EITF 01-9, the Company was required to classify certain
payments to its customers as a reduction of sales. The amounts reclassified resulted in a reduction of net sales (and an offsetting reduction of
operating expenses) of $3,649,000 in 2002 and $3,889,000 in 2001. Accordingly, the Company engages in various customer programs. The
Company accounts for these programs as operating expenses in accordance with EITF 01-9 as the Company receives an identifiable benefit in
exchange for the consideration. Amounts charged to operating expenses were $2,222,000 in 2002 and $1,761,000 in 2001.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment includes the cost of land, buildings, machinery and equipment, office furniture and fixtures, automobiles, and
construction projects and significant improvements to existing plant and equipment. Interest costs related to significant construction projects
may be capitalized at the Company�s weighted average cost of capital. Expenditures for maintenance and minor repairs are expensed as incurred.
When property or equipment is sold or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation is removed from the respective
accounts and the gain or loss realized on disposition is reflected in earnings. All plan and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line
method, utilizing estimated useful property lives. Building lives range from 10 to 30 years; machinery and equipment lives rang from 3 to 15
years; office furniture and fixtures lives range from 3 to 10 years, automobile lives range from 3 to 6 years; construction projects and significant
improvements to existing plant and equipment lives range from 3 to 15 years when placed in service.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries, where the local currency is the functional currency, have been translated at year end exchange rates
and profit and loss accounts have been translated using weighted average yearly exchange rates. Adjustments resulting from translation have
been recorded in the equity section of the balance sheet as cumulative translation adjustments in other comprehensive loss.
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES�(Continued)

The effect of foreign currency exchange gains and losses on transactions that are denominated in currencies other than the entity�s functional
currency are remeasured into the functional currency using the end of the period exchange rates. The effects of foreign currency transactions are
included in current profit and loss accounts.

The Company had total comprehensive income of $10,328, $6,777 and $5,639, for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, which include foreign currency gain (loss) of $65, $(272) and $0, for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash, receivables and accounts payable approximate their fair values because of the short maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of the Company�s long-term debt and note payable to bank is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar
issues or on the current rates offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities. Such fair value approximates the respective
carrying values of the Company�s long-term debt and note payable to bank.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method to account for income taxes, including recognition of deferred tax assets for the anticipated
future tax consequences attributable to differences between financial statement amounts and their respective tax bases. Income tax expense is
recognized currently for taxes payable. The Company reviews its deferred tax assets for recovery. A valuation allowance is established when the
Company believes that it is more likely than not that some portion of its deferred tax assets will not be realized. Changes in valuation allowances
from period to period are included in the Company�s tax provision in the period of change.

Per Share Information

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 128, Earnings Per Share (�EPS�) requires dual presentation of basic EPS and diluted
EPS on the face of all income statements. Basic EPS is computed as net income divided by the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts, which, for the
Company, consists of options to purchase shares of the Company�s common stock are exercised.
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The components of basic and diluted earnings per share were as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Numerator:
Net income $ 10,263 $ 7,049 $ 5,639

Denominator:
Weighted averages shares outstanding 8,811,303 8,670,301 8,605,314
Assumed exercise of stock options 502,950 421,484 265,536

9,314,253 9,091,785 8,870,850

The effect of options to purchase 151,575, 126,563, and 465,750 shares for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, were excluded
from the computation of earnings per dilutive share. The impact of such common stock equivalents are excluded from the calculation of net
income per share on a diluted basis as their effect is anti-dilutive.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses at the date that the financial statements are prepared.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES�(Continued)

Reclassifications

Certain prior years� amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year�s presentation.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The primary identifiable intangible assets of the Company relate to product rights associated with its product acquisitions. The Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under the
provisions of SFAS No. 142, identifiable intangibles with finite lives are amortized and those with indefinite lives are not amortized. The
estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset to the Company is based upon a number of factors including the effects of demand,
competition, and expected changes in the marketability of the Company�s products. The Company tests identifiable intangible assets for
impairment at least annually, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows. Identifiable
intangible assets that are subject to amortization are evaluated for impairment using a process similar to that used to evaluate elements of
property. The impairment test for identifiable intangible assets not subject to amortization consists of a comparison of the fair value of the
intangible asset with its carrying amount. An impairment loss, if any, is recognized for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair
value of the asset. Fair value is typically estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis, which requires the Company to estimate the future
cash flows anticipated to be generated by the particular asset(s) being tested for impairment as well as select a discount rate to measure the
present value of the anticipated cash flows. When determining future cash flow estimates, the Company considers historical results adjusted to
reflect current and anticipated operating conditions. Estimating future cash flows requires significant judgment by the Company in such areas as
future economic conditions, industry-specific conditions, product pricing and necessary capital expenditures. The use of different assumptions or
estimates for future cash flows could produce different impairment amounts (or none at all) for long-lived assets, goodwill and identifiable
intangible assets. As of January 1, 2002, the Company had an immaterial amount of goodwill and amortization related to the goodwill. As such,
the adoption of SFAS 142, did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial statements.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.� In accordance with SFAS No. 123,
the Company has elected the disclosure-only provisions related to employee stock options and follows the Accounting Principals Board Opinion
(APB) No. 25 in accounting for stock options issued to employees. Under APB No. 25, compensation expense, if any, is recognized as the
difference between the exercise price and the fair value of the common stock on the measurement date, which is typically the date of grant, and
is recognized over the service period, which is typically the vesting period.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation�Transition and Disclosure�. SFAS No. 148
amends SFAS No. 123 and provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation. SFAS No. 148 also amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require more prominent and
frequent disclosures in financial statements about the effects of stock-based compensation. The Company adopted the disclosure requirements of
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SFAS No. 148 in the fourth quarter of 2002.

All stock options issued to employees have an exercise price not less than the fair market value of the Company�s common stock on the date of
the grant, and in accordance with accounting for such options utilizing the intrinsic value method there is no related compensation expense
recorded in the Company�s consolidated financial statements. Had compensation cost for stock-based compensation been determined based on
the fair value of the grant dates consistent with the method of FASB 123, the Company�s net income and income per share for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts presented:

2003 2002 2001

Net income attributable to common stockholders $ 10,263 $ 7,049 $ 5,639
Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net of related
tax effects $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based
method for all awards, net of related tax effects $ (182) $ (1) $ (8)

Pro forma $ 10,081 $ 7,048 $ 5,631

Earnings per common share $ 1.16 $ 0.81 $ 0.66
Pro forma $ 1.14 $ 0.81 $ 0.65
Earnings per common share�assuming dilution, as reported $ 1.10 $ 0.78 $ 0.64
Pro forma $ 1.08 $ 0.78 $ 0.63

21

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN VANGUARD CORP - Form 10-K/A

42



AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES�(Continued)

The fair value of option grants is estimated on the date of grant utilizing the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the weighted average
assumptions for grants in 2003, 2002 and 2001; expected life of options was one to five years, expected volatility of 12%, 7% and 6%, risk-free
interest rate of 3.0%, 4.3% and 5.5% and a .26% dividend yield. The weighted average fair value on the date of grants for options granted during
2003 and 2002 was $9.31 and $3.48 per option, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (�SFAS 146�), effective for exit or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, SFAS 146 addresses the financial accounting and reporting for certain costs associated with
exit or disposal activities, including restructuring actions. SFAS 146 excludes from its scope severance benefits that are subject to an on-going
benefit arrangement governed by SFAS 112, Employer�s Accounting for Post employment Benefits, and asset impairments governed by SFAS
144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. The adoption of SFAS 146 did not have a material impact on the
Company�s financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (�FIN 45�) Guarantor�s Accounting and Disclosure Requirement for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. This Interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a
guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a
guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the
guarantee. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The following is a summary of the Company�s agreements that the Company has determined is
within the scope of FIN 45.

Under its bylaws, the Company has agreed to indemnify its officers and directors for certain events or occurrences arising as a result of the
officer or director�s serving in such capacity. The term of the indemnification period is for the officer�s or director�s lifetime. The maximum
potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited. However, the
Company has a directors� and officers� liability insurance policy that reduces its exposure and enables it to recover a portion of any future
amounts paid. As a result of its insurance policy coverage, the Company believes the estimated fair value of these indemnification agreements is
minimal and has no liability recorded for these agreements as of December 31, 2003.

The Company enters into indemnification provisions under its agreements with other companies in its ordinary course of business (typically
customers). Under these provisions the Company generally indemnifies and holds harmless the indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred
by the indemnified party as a result of the Company�s activities or, in some cases, as a result of the indemnified party�s activities under the
agreement. The indemnification provisions may survive the termination of the underlying agreement. In addition, in some cases, the Company
has agreed to reimburse employees for certain expenses and to provide salary continuation during short-term disability. The maximum potential
amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification provisions may be unlimited. The Company has
not incurred material costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnification provisions. As a result, the Company believes the
estimated fair value of these provisions is minimal. Accordingly, the Company has no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of December
31, 2003.
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In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation�an Amendment of SFAS No. 123 (�SFAS 148�).
This statement amends SFAS No. 123 to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this statement amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require
prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Company adopted SFAS 148 on January 1, 2003, and has elected to continue to use
the intrinsic method to account for employee stock options and accordingly, the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s
financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (�FIN 46�). This Interpretation requires
that variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and variable interest entities in which an interest is obtained after that date, be
evaluated for consolidation into an entity�s financial statements. This interpretation also applies, beginning July 1, 2003 for the Company, to all
variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds an interest that it acquired before February 1, 2003. The company has adopted this
statement and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial statements.
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES�(Continued)

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity, (�SFAS
150�) which establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities
and equity. SFAS 150 requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope, which may have previously been reported as
equity, as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). This statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May
31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003 for public companies. The
Company adopted SFAS 150 on July 1, 2003. The adoption of SFAS 150 did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial statements.

In December 2003, the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) issued staff accounting bulletin No. 104 (�SAB104�) �Revenue Recognition,�
which codifies, revises and rescinds certain sections of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 �Revenue Recognition,� in order to make this
interpretive guidance consistent with current authoritative accounting guidance and SEC rules and regulations. The changes noted in SAB 104
did not have a material effect on the Company�s financial statements.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (�EITF�) issued Issue No. 00-21, �Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables�. This issue addresses determination of whether an arrangement involving more than one deliverable contains more than one unit of
accounting and how arrangement consideration should be measured and allocated to the separate units of accounting. EITF Issue No. 00-21 is
effective for revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal quarters beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company adopted this issue on July 1, 2003
and the adoption had no material impact on our operating results or financial position.
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(1) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2003 and 2002 consists of the following:

2003 2002

Estimated

useful lives

Land $ 2,441 $ 2,441
Buildings and improvements 4,903 4,792 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment 39,273 25,921 3 to 15 years
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,882 2,538 3 to 10 years
Automotive equipment 124 124 3 to 6 years
Construction in progress 1,798 11,155

51,421 46,971
Less accumulated depreciation 29,744 26,987

$ 21,677 $ 19,984

The Company began the re-commissioning phase during the third quarter of 2001 of the Axis, Alabama manufacturing facility it acquired in
May 2001 from E.I. Du Pont de Nemours. The Company began the commissioning phase of this facility during the third quarter of 2001 and this
facility was placed in service in May 2003. As of December 31, 2003, all cost related to the re-commissioning of the Axis, Alabama
manufacturing facility have been placed into service and depreciation over their estimated useful lives has commenced. As of December 31,
2002, $10, 150 of the $11,155 appearing in Construction in progress relates to the re-commissioning of the Axis, Alabama manufacturing
facility.

(2) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt of the Company at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is summarized as follows:
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2003 2002

Note payable, secured by certain real property, payable in monthly installments of $6, plus interest at
prime (4.00% as of December 31, 2003) plus 2% with remaining unpaid principal due October 15,
2004* $ 1,391 $ 1,464
Term loan, secured by personal property, payable in quarterly installments of $625 plus interest at
prime (4.00% as of December 31, 2003) with remaining unpaid principal due May 31, 2007 (see note
3) 8,125 10,000
Obligations under product acquisition agreements (see note 9) 4,800 250

14,316 11,714
Less current installments 6,374 1,949

$ 7,942 $ 9,765

* This note payable, secured by certain real property, was refinanced effective March 19, 2004 (new financed amount of $2,660). The new loan
bears interest at prime, or at the Company�s option, at a fixed rate of interest offered by the bank. The new monthly installments, effective
April 2004, are $9, plus interest. The Company will make principal plus interest payments over a seven-year term of the loan (loan matures
April 1, 2011), based on a twenty-five-year amortization schedule. The proceeds from the loan, were used to payoff this maturing term loan
and repay bank debt (fully-secured revolving line).

Approximate principal payments on long-term debt mature as follows:

2004 $ 6,374
2005 4,817
2006 2,500
2007 625

$ 14,316
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

(3) Note Payable to Bank

In May 2002, the Company entered into a new $45,000 fully-secured long-term credit agreement. The Company�s primary bank (the �Bank�) acted
as sole administrative agent arranger and syndication agent. The bank syndicated the new credit facility with another bank. The $45,000 credit
facility consists of a senior secured revolving line of credit of $35,000 and a $10,000 senior secured term loan (see note 2). The borrowings
under the credit agreement bear interest at the prime (4.00% as of December 31, 2003) rate (�Referenced Loans�), or at the Company�s option, at a
fixed rate of interest offered by the bank (�Fixed Loans�) for terms of one, two, three, six, nine or twelve months. Interest on the referenced loans
is payable quarterly, in arrears, on the last day of each March, June, September, and December, and on the maturity date of such loan, in the
amount of interest then accrued but unpaid. The senior secured revolving line of credit matures on May 31, 2005.

Interest on the fixed loans is payable on the last day of the interest period, provided that, with an interest period longer than three months,
interest is payable on the last day of each three-month period after the commencement of such interest period. The term loan matures on May 31,
2007. The principal payments of the term loan are payable in equal quarterly installments of $625 each, on or before the last business day of
each February, May, August and November, commencing May 31, 2003 and in one final installment in the amount necessary to repay the
remaining outstanding principal balance of the term loan in full on the maturity date. (see note 2)

Substantially all of the Company�s assets not otherwise specifically pledged as collateral on existing loans and capital leases are pledged as
collateral under the credit agreement.

The credit agreement, among other financial covenants, limits payments of cash dividends to a maximum of 25% of net income. The Company
was in compliance with the financial covenants as of December 31, 2003.

The balance outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $14,200 and $8,000, respectively. The average amount outstanding during the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $12,800 and $14,023. The weighted average interest rate during the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002 was 3.45% and 4.11%.

(4) Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense are:

2003 2002 2001
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Current:
Federal $ 4,049 $ 2,846 $ 3,758
State 1,185 282 341
Deferred:
Federal 613 964 (618)
State 72 137 (97)

$ 5,919 $ 4,229 $ 3,384

Total income tax expense differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. Federal income tax rate of 34% to income before income
tax expense as a result of the following:

2003 2002 2001

Computed tax provision at statutory Federal rates $ 5,648 $ 3,834 $ 3,068
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
State taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit 322 491 373
Nondeductible and other expenses 28 (6) (10)
Benefit of tax credits (79) (90) (47)

$ 5,919 $ 4,229 $ 3,384
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AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

Temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities that give rise to significant
portions of the net deferred tax liability at December 31, 2003 and 2002 relate to the following:

2003 2002

Current:
Inventories $ 543 $ 289
State income taxes 372 (235)
Accrued bonus �  �  
Vacation pay accrual 143 112
Imputed interest on royalty obligation �  (114)
Accrued sales programs �  231
Other (79) 6

Net deferred tax asset 979 289

Non-Current:
Plant and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation and capitalized
interest (3,051) (1,528)

Net deferred tax liability (3,051) (1,528)

Total net deferred tax liability $ (2,072) $ (1,239)

The Company believes it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets above will be realized in the normal course of business.

(5) Litigation and Environmental

DBCP LAWSUITS

A. Hawaii Matters

AMVAC and the Company were served with complaints in February 1997. The actions were filed in the Circuit Court of the Second Circuit,
State of Hawaii entitled Board of Water Supply of the County of Maui v. Shell Oil Co., et. al. The suit named as defendants the Company,
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AMVAC, Shell Oil Company, The Dow Chemical Company, Occidental Chemical Company, Occidental Petroleum Corporation, Occidental
Chemical Corporation, and Brewer Environmental Industry, Inc. Maui Pineapple Company was joined as a cross-defendant. The Complaint
alleged that between two and four of the Board�s wells had been contaminated with 1,2-dibromo-3-chloropropane (�DBCP�) in excess of the
maximum contaminant level. On August 2, 1999, a global settlement was reached, which included the remediation of the existing contaminated
wells in addition to the installation of filtration devices on other wells for the next forty years on the island of Maui. The cash settlement was
three million dollars of which AMVAC�s (and the Company�s) portion was $500,000. [As to matters independent of indemnity issues, the
Company recovered $400,000 from one of its insurers.] The settlement agreement obligates the defendants to pay for the ongoing operation and
maintenance of the filtration devices for up to forty years. The annual costs of operation and maintenance per well is estimated to be
approximately $69,000, to be adjusted annually by the consumer price index. The defendants are also obligated to pay between ninety and
one-hundred percent for the cost of the installation of filtration devices on other wells that may exceed the defined maximum contaminant level
in the next forty years. The number of future wells needing remediation could be less than six or more than that amount, however, the maximum
number of wells subject to remediation under the agreement is fifty. AMVAC�s share of the ongoing operation and maintenance charges and
installation of additional devices on other wells is seventeen and one-half percent. The obligations of the defendants under this agreement are
secured by a twenty million-dollar letter of credit obtained by Dow Chemical. AMVAC will pay seventeen and one-half percent of the annual
cost of the letter of credit directly to Dow Chemical. Thus far, no additional wells have been remediated nor has there been ongoing operation
and maintenance charges.

In October 1997, AMVAC was served with a Complaint(s) in which it was named as a Defendant, filed in the Circuit Court, First Circuit, State
of Hawaii and in the Circuit Court of the Second Circuit, State of Hawaii (two identical suits) entitled Patrickson, et. al. v. Dole Food Co., et. al
(�Patrickson Case�) alleging damages sustained from injuries caused by Plaintiffs� exposure to DBCP while applying the product in their native
countries. Other named defendants are: Dole Food Co., Dole Fresh Fruit, Dole Fresh Fruit International, Pineapple Growers Association of
Hawaii, Shell Oil Company, Dow Chemical Company, Occidental Chemical Corporation, Standard Fruit Company, Standard Fruit & Steamship,
Standard Fruit Company De Costa Rica, Standard Fruit company De Honduras, Chiquita Brands, Chiquita Brands International, Martrop
Trading Corporation, and Del Monte Fresh Produce.
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(American Vanguard Corporation has not been sued in these actions.) The ten named Plaintiffs are citizens of four countries�Guatemala, Costa
Rica, Panama, and Ecuador. Punitive damages are sought against each defendant. The Plaintiffs were banana workers and allege that they were
exposed to DBCP in applying the product in their native countries. The case was also filed as a class action on behalf of other workers so
exposed in these four countries. (The Plaintiffs� attorneys (from South Carolina) have also represented foreign banana workers in the Texas and
Mississippi matters discussed below.) For the last six years, the focus of the case has been on procedural issues. The defendants moved to
dismiss under the doctrine of forum non conveniens. Under this doctrine, the foreign Plaintiffs would have to sue in their own countries rather
than using the United States courts. The Plaintiffs wish to keep the cases in the United States and have them remanded to state court. The
Plaintiffs also contend that the federal court does not have jurisdiction. In September 1998, the court granted defendants� motion to dismiss based
on the grounds of forum non conveniens. A number of conditions were imposed including consent to jurisdiction in the four foreign countries for
the ten named Plaintiffs, use of discovery taken in the United States, the requirement that the Plaintiffs file suits in their home countries by
December 9, 1998, and the agreement by defendants to pay any judgment, if any, that might be entered in the foreign countries. The court order
also provided that the Plaintiffs could return to the United States if the foreign countries refused to accept jurisdiction. The court then dismissed
the case on March 8, 1999. The Plaintiffs subsequently appealed to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeal. Oral arguments were heard in the Ninth
Circuit on August 9, 2000. The Ninth Circuit issued its decision on May 30, 2001, holding that the federal court did not have jurisdiction. A
petition for writ of certiorari (a writ of a superior court to call up the records of an inferior court or quasi-judicial body) was filed in United
States Supreme Court on October 5, 2001 and the United States Supreme Court subsequently granted a hearing. Oral argument was held on
January 22, 2003. On April 22, 2003, the United States Supreme Court issued its decision in favor of the Plaintiffs, holding there was no
jurisdiction in federal court. This vacates the order dismissing the case under the forum non conveniens doctrine. One September 5, 2003, the
U.S. District Court in Honolulu issued an order that the case will be remanded to state court unless there is an objection filed by September 18,
2003. As the U.S. Supreme Court has issued its final decision on the lack of federal court jurisdiction, the case will be remanded to state. Once
the case reaches state court, the defendants will have to decide whether they will file a motion to dismiss under forum non conveniens pursuant
to state court procedures. The Plaintiffs� attorneys reported that the ten Plaintiffs filed suit in their home countries by December 9, 1998, alleging
in excess of two million United States dollars per Plaintiff. The suit in Guatemala was served on AMVAC in March 2001, but no defendant has
been required to answer. Suits in the other countries have not been served. AMVAC has engaged local attorneys in the countries to defend these
foreign suits. No discovery has taken place on the individual claims of the Plaintiffs. It is too early to provide any evaluation of the likelihood of
an unfavorable outcome at this time. Without such discovery, it is unknown whether any of the Plaintiffs was exposed to AMVAC brand DBCP
or what statute of limitation defense may apply. AMVAC intends to contest the cases vigorously.

B. Pending Matters in Hawaii

On or about October 1, 2003, the Company was indirectly advised of a possible claim for ground water contamination on the Island of Maui.
(This is separate and distinct from Item 1 (A) above.) The Company was provided with communications between Maui Land & Pineapple
Company, Inc. (�Maui Pine�) and Hawaii Water Service Company (�HWSC�). HWSC is a non-municipally owned public water utility owning three
water wells allegedly contaminated with DBCP and 1,2,3-tri-chloropropane (�TCP�). HWSC further alleges that the wells were contaminated by
the above mentioned chemicals manufactured, marketed, distributed and/or sold by Maui Land & Pineapple Company, Maui Pineapple
Company (collectively, �Maui Pine�), The Dow Chemical Company, Dow AgroSciences, LLC (collectively, �Dow�), Occidental Petroleum
Corporation, Occidental Chemical Corporation (collectively, �Occidental�), Shell Oil Company, Shell Chemical Company (collectively, �Shell�),
American Vanguard Corporation, AMVAC Chemical Company (collectively, �AMVAC�), BEI Hawaii and Brewer Environmental Industries
Holdings, Inc. (collectively �Brewer�). On or about October 17, 2003, all parties agreed to a tolling of the applicable statute of limitations in order
to enter into mediation proceedings. The Company has been advised that the total claim could approximate four million dollars, inclusive of
future expenses for operations and maintenance of filtration devices on the wells. The parties met with an independent mediator on January 14
and 15, 2004 to discuss this claim. On January 15, 2004, the Company reached a settlement with HWSC for fifty-five thousand dollars
($55,000.00), contingent upon obtaining a court order approving the settlement as one made in good faith. The settlement includes future
expenses for operations and maintenance. As not all parties settled at the mediation, HWSC advised that it will file suit in the Circuit Court of
the Second Circuit, State of Hawaii. To facilitate the filing of the good faith settlement motion, HWSC�s suit will also name as defendants the
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Company and the other parties which also settled. News reports state that this suit was filed on or about February 1, 2004. The suit has not yet
been served on the Company.

C. Mississippi Matters

In May 1996, AMVAC was served with five complaints in which it is named as a Defendant. (These complaints were filed by the same
attorneys representing the Patrickson Plaintiffs in Hawaii.) The complaints are entitled Edgar Arroyo-Gonzalez v. Coahoma
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Chemical Co., Inc., et al, Amilcar Belteton-Rivera v. Coahoma Chemical Co., Inc., et al, Eulogio Garzon-Larreategui v. Coahoma Chemical
Co., Inc., et al, Valentin Valdez v. Coahoma Chemical Co., Inc., et al and Carlos Nicanor Espinola-E v. Coahoma Chemical Co., Inc., et al.
Other named defendants are: Coahoma Chemical Co. Inc., Shell Oil Company, Dow Chemical Co., Occidental Chemical Co., Standard Fruit
Co., Standard Fruit and Steamship Co., Dole Food Co., Inc., Dole Fresh Fruit Co., Chiquita Brands, Inc., Chiquita Brands International, Inc. and
Del Monte Fresh Produce, N.A. The cases were filed in the Circuit Court of Harrison County, First Judicial District of Mississippi. Each case
alleged damages sustained from injuries caused by Plaintiffs� (who are former banana workers and citizens of a Central American country)
exposure to DBCP while applying the product in their native countries. These cases have been removed to U.S. District Court for the Southern
District of Mississippi, Southern Division. The federal court granted defense motions to dismiss in each case pursuant to the doctrine of forum
non conveniens. Unlike the Patrickson case, the court did not establish detailed procedures or deadlines for the filing of suits in the foreign
countries by the five Plaintiffs. Defendants have learned that Plaintiff Valentin Valdez has filed a suit in Panama, but they have not been served.
On January 19, 2001, the court issued an unpublished decision, finding that there was jurisdiction in federal court, but remanded just one case
(Espinola) back to the trial court to determine if a stipulation which limited the Plaintiff�s recovery to fifty thousand dollars was binding. If the
stipulation is binding, that case will be remanded to state court. If the stipulation is not binding, that case will be dismissed along with the others,
requiring the Plaintiffs to litigate in their native countries. A deposition of the plaintiff Espinola was scheduled but was never taken. The federal
court then ordered remand to state court. The attorneys for Dow Chemical Co. filed a motion for reconsideration, explaining that the Plaintiffs
attorneys did not produce their client for deposition. This motion is still pending. No discovery has taken place on the individual claims of these
Plaintiffs. If the Espinola case is tried in Mississippi state court, the maximum recovery is fifty thousand dollars. Without discovery, it is
unknown whether any of the Plaintiffs was exposed to the Company�s product or what statute of limitation defense may apply. AMVAC intends
to contest the cases vigorously. It is too early to provide an evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome at this time.

D. Louisiana Matters

In November 1999, AMVAC was served with three complaints filed in the 29th Judicial District Court for the Parish of St. Charles, State of
Louisiana entitled Pedro Rodrigues et. al v. Amvac Chemical Corporation et. al, Andres Puerto, et. al v. Amvac Chemical Corporation, et. al
and Eduardo Soriano, et. al v. Amvac Chemical Corporation et. al. Other named defendants are: Dow Chemical Company, Occidental Chemical
Corporation, Shell Oil Company, Standard Fruit, Dole Food, Chiquita Brands, Tela Railroad Company, Compania Palma Tica, and Del Monte
Fresh Produce. These suits were filed in 1996, they were not served until November 1999. (These complaints were filed in association with the
same attorneys who have handled the Delgado and Carcamo matters listed below.) The complaints allege personal injuries from alleged
exposure to DBCP (punitive damages are also sought). The Plaintiffs (approximately three thousand nine hundred) are primarily from the
countries of the Philippines, Costa Rica, Ecuador and Guatemala. In November 1999, the cases were removed to the United States District Court
for the Eastern District of Louisiana. The Plaintiffs filed a motion to remand the cases back to the state court in December 1999. In February
2000, the Plaintiffs� attorneys withdrew their motion to remand the cases to state court without prejudice, stating that they would wait for an
appellate court determination on similar issues in the Mississippi and Texas cases. Dow Chemical Company, Shell Oil Company and Occidental
Chemical Corporation contend that the vast majority of these Plaintiffs were included in the settlement of some fifteen thousand Plaintiffs
mentioned in the Delgado and Carcamo matters discussed below. In September 2002, the Plaintiffs� attorneys finally evaluated their list of
Plaintiffs who had settled previously. They agreed that the plaintiffs who settle with Dow Chemical Company, Shell Oil Company, and
Occidental Chemical Corporation were now only proceeding against the grower defendants. The plaintiffs who had not settle previously would
continue with the suit against all defendants, including AMVAC. Thus, out of the approximately three thousand nine-hundred Plaintiffs, about
three hundred and fourteen are left (one hundred and sixty-seven are from Ecuador, one hundred and two are from Costa Rica and forty-five are
from Guatemala). The Plaintiffs filed a consolidated third amended complaint in October 2002 with Soriano as the lead case. Each Plaintiff
seeks in excess of the minimum jurisdiction of federal court for diversity of citizenship cases (seventy-five thousand dollars). AMVAC has
answered the third amended complaint. With the United States Supreme Court holding there was no federal court jurisdiction in the Patrickson
case, the federal court judge issued an order to the parties on April 23, 2003 as to why the cases should not be remanded to state court. The
defendants argued that there was still federal court jurisdiction because of diversity of citizenship, but this diversity did not exist at the time the
suites ere originally filed in 1996 and accordingly, the court remanded the cases to state court on June 23, 2003. In state court, the three cases
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were assigned to two different judges. The defendants considered filing another motion to dismiss based on forum non conveniens. In Louisiana,
all defendants must join in making such a motion. By this time, unfavorable anti-forum non conveniens laws had passed or were pending in
several of the countries where the Plaintiffs resided. Several of the defendants were against consenting to jurisdiction in those countries, which is
a condition required by an order of dismissal under forum non conveniens. As a result, these cases will now be litigated in state court in
Louisiana. The state court has not yet scheduled any case management or status conferences. It is likely that the three cases will be
reconsolidated in state court. As in the other banana worker�s cases, no discovery has taken place on the
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individual claims of the Plaintiffs. Thus, it is unknown as to how many of the Plaintiffs claim exposure to AMVAC�s product and whether their
claims are barred by applicable statutes of limitation. AMVAC intends to vigorously contest these cases. It is too early to provide any evaluation
of the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome at this time.

E. Texas Matters

These matters involve an earlier round of litigation by foreign banana workers. The complaints filed in the United States Court of Appeals, Fifth
Circuit entitled Franklin Rodriquez Delgado, et al., Jorge Colindres Carcamo, individually and on behalf of all other similarly situated, et al.,
Juan Ramon Valdez, et al., and Isae Carcamo v. Shell Oil Company, et al. The complaints are for personal injuries from alleged exposure to
DBCP. AMVAC was not sued by the Plaintiffs but was sued on a third party complaint by Dow Chemical Company. These cases were
originally filed in various state courts in Texas and removed by the defendants to federal court. By order dated July 11, 1995, the United States
District Court granted defendants� motion to dismiss pursuant to the doctrine of forum non conveniens, requiring the Plaintiffs to sue in their
native countries. The court required the defendants to consent to jurisdiction in the foreign countries along with other conditions. As AMVAC
had not been sued by the Plaintiffs directly, it refused to consent to jurisdiction in the foreign countries for these Plaintiffs. In 1995, Dow
Chemical Company dismissed its third party complaint against AMVAC without prejudice. Subsequently, Dow Chemical Company and Shell
Oil Company settled with these Plaintiffs as well as with about fifteen thousand other banana workers represented by the Plaintiffs� law firm.
Dow Chemical Company was then dismissed by the Plaintiffs with prejudice in September 1997. Two intervenors (who are represented by the
same attorneys as the Plaintiffs in the Patrickson and Mississippi cases above) have filed a motion in opposition to this dismissal. The Plaintiffs
appealed to the Fifth Circuit on the order of dismissal under forum non conveniens. In October 2000, the Fifth Circuit found federal court
jurisdiction and affirmed the dismissals based on forum non conveniens. The United States Supreme Court refused to accept a hearing at that
time. The Plaintiffs want the court to hear this case if it decides to hear the Patrickson Case. While AMVAC is not presently a party in this
lawsuit having been dismissed without prejudice, the case is still pending, with the focus now shifted to the grower defendants. These remaining
claims are apparently now being remanded to state courts in Texas.

F. Nicaragua Matters

In January 2003, three new cases were filed in Nicaragua. This time defendants besides Dow Chemical Company, Shell Oil Company and Dole
Food were sued, including AMVAC, Occidental Chemical Corporation, Del Monte Fresh Produce, Chiquita Brands, Ameribrom and three
Chevron entities. It is reported that these Plaintiffs claim damages for sterility and that there are approximately three hundred and fifty Plaintiffs
named in these three cases. AMVAC has not been served to date and has not seen the complaints. AMVAC disputes that the Nicaraguan courts
have jurisdiction over it. AMVAC intends to vigorously contest these cases. It is too early to provide any evaluation of the likelihood of an
unfavorable outcome at this time.

OTHER MATTERS
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The Company may be, from time to time, involved in other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of its business. The results of
litigation cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company has and will continue to expend resources and incur expenses in connection with
these proceedings. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in these proceedings. While the Company continually
evaluates insurance levels for product liability, property damage and other potential areas of risk, an adverse determination in one or more of
these proceedings could subject the Company to significant liabilities, which could have a material adverse effect on its financial condition and
operating results.

Environmental

During 2003, AMVAC continued activities to address environmental issues associated with its facility (the Facility) in Commerce, California.

In March 1997, the California Environmental Protection Agency Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) accepted the Facility into its
Expedited Remedial Action Program (ERAP). Under this program, the Facility must prepare and implement an environmental investigation
plan. Depending on the findings of the investigation, the Facility may also be required to develop and implement remedial measures to address
any historical environmental impairment. The environmental investigation and any remediation activities related to ten underground storage
tanks at the Facility, which had been closed in 1995, will also be addressed by AMVAC under ERAP.
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Soil and groundwater characterization activities began in December 2002 in accordance with the Site Investigation Plan that was approved by
the DTSC. Additional activities were conducted in December 2003 under the oversight of the DTSC. Additional investigation and potential
remediation activities are planned to be implemented in a phased approach over the next one to two years under the oversight of the DTSC.
These investigation and potential remediation activities are required at all facilities that currently have, or in the past had, hazardous waste
storage permits. Because AMVAC previously held a hazardous waste management permit, AMVAC is subject to these requirements. The cost
associated with the potential remediation activities is not expected to have a material impact on the Company�s financial statements.

The Company is subject to numerous federal and state laws and governmental regulations concerning environmental matters and employee
health and safety at the Commerce, California and Axis, Alabama facilities. The Company continually adapts its manufacturing process to the
environmental control standards of the various regulatory agencies. The U.S. EPA and other federal and state agencies have the authority to
promulgate regulations that could have an impact on the Company�s operations.

AMVAC expends substantial funds to minimize the discharge of materials in the environment and to comply with the governmental regulations
relating to protection of the environment. Wherever feasible, AMVAC recovers raw materials and increases product yield in order to partially
offset increasing pollution abatement costs.

The Company is committed to a long-term environmental protection program that reduces emissions of hazardous materials into the
environment, as well as to the remediation of identified existing environmental concerns. Federal and state authorities may seek fines and
penalties for violation of the various laws and governmental regulations. As part of its continuing environmental program, except as disclosed in
PART I, Item 3, Legal Proceedings, of this Annual Report, the Company has been able to comply with such proceedings and orders without any
materially adverse effect on its business.

(6) Employee Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company maintains a deferred compensation plan (�the Plan�) for all eligible employees. The Plan calls for each eligible employee, at the
employee�s election, to participate in an income deferral arrangement under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) whereby the Company will
match the first $5.00 of weekly employee contributions. The Plan also permits employees to contribute up to an additional 15% of their salaries
of which the company will match 50% of the first 6% of the additional contribution. The Company�s contributions to the Plan amounted to $328,
$301 and $295 in 2003, 2002 and 2001.

(7) Major Customers and Export Sales
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In 2003 there were two companies that accounted for 11% each of the Company�s consolidated sales. In 2002 there were three companies that
accounted for 22%, 12% and 10% of the Company�s consolidated sales. In 2001 there was one company that accounted for 23% of the
Company�s consolidated sales. These companies are distributors or buying cooperatives.

The Company primarily sells its products to large distributors and buying cooperatives and extends credit based on an evaluation of the
customer�s financial condition. The Company had two significant customers who each accounted for approximately 13% of the Company�s
receivable as of December 31, 2003. Two customers accounted for 24% and 14% respectively, of the Company�s receivable as of December 31,
2002. The Company has long-standing relationships with its customers and the Company considers the credit risk to be low.

Worldwide export sales were $8,943, $7,470 and $6,086 for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2003, sales to
Mexico and Canada accounted for more than 10% of foreign sales, with sales of $2,284, $1,944 and $1,224, respectively. Of total foreign sales,
sales to Mexico and Canada accounted for more than 10% individually for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, with foreign sales to
Mexico of $2,149, and $1,445, respectively and sales to Canada for the same periods of $1,210 and $1,399.

(8) Royalties

The Company has various royalty agreements in place extending through December 2007. These agreements relate to the acquisition of certain
products as well as licensing arrangements. One agreement, which expired December 31, 2003, contained a minimum aggregate royalty amount,
which had previously been met. No other agreement contains a minimum royalty provision. Certain royalty agreements contain confidentiality
covenants. Royalty expenses were $1,988, $1,752 and $1,293 respectively, for 2003, 2002 and 2001.
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(9) Product Acquisitions

All product acquisitions have been accounted for as asset purchases and not businesses pursuant to FASB 141 and EITF98-3.

In 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of seven product lines, one used in animal health, one related to its herbicides business and five
related to pre-harvest crop protection. The assets purchased included, but may not have been limited to, end-use product registrations and data in
support of such registrations, trademarks, as well as other intellectual property. One asset purchase was for $5,786 (which included a number of
products) and another was for $4,500. In connection with these asset acquisitions, the Company recorded intangible assets in the amount of
$10,726, of which $5,926 was paid in cash during the period, the balance due under these asset purchase agreements was $4,800 at December
31, 2003 and is included in Long-term debt on the consolidated financial statements (note 2).

In 2002, the Company acquired certain assets associated with a domestic product line from a chemical company. The Company acquired all U.S.
EPA end-use product registrations and data in support of such registrations as well as a license to the trademark.

Also in 2002, the Company acquired certain assets associated with a domestic product line from a chemical company. The Company acquired
the U.S. EPA end-use product registrations as well as the trademark and product inventories. In addition, the Company negotiated a supply
agreement providing for the supply of active ingredient. Access to data in support of the end-use product registration has been assigned to the
Company.

In 2001, the Company acquired an international product line from a chemical company. The purchase included all active registrations, access to
the underlying data for the registrations and trademarks in 55 countries. The Company has manufactured and formulated the product for the
international market since 1985. Additionally, the Company has been the primary data generator and data holder for the product since 1989. The
acquisition was for a fixed amount which was paid in 2001.

In 2000, the Company completed the acquisition of a product line from a wholly-owned subsidiary of a large chemical company. The purchase
included the worldwide rights including U. S. Environmental Protection Agency (�EPA�) registrations rights and similar regulatory entities in
other countries worldwide, manufacturing and process technology, trademarks and all product related intellectual property. In addition, the
Company entered into a royalty obligation commencing on or about May 2002 to continue for five years from May 2002.

Additionally in 2000, the Company completed the acquisition of a product line from a large chemical company. The Company acquired all U.S.
EPA and state registrations, manufacturing and process technology, trademarks and all product related intellectual property. The acquisition
included all rights and obligations to a closed delivery system as well as the seller�s existing finished and semi-finished inventory including the
closed delivery system containers.
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The primary identifiable intangible assets of the Company relate to product rights associated with its product acquisitions. These rights, for the
most part, consist of product registrations and related data filed with the United States Environmental Protection Agency and state regulatory
agencies to support such registrations and other supporting data. The amount of goodwill allocated to the product acquisitions has not been
material. The following schedule represents intangible assets recognized in connection with product acquisitions (See Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies � Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets for the Company�s accounting policy regarding intangible assets):

The following schedule represents intangible assets recognized in connection with product acquisitions (See note 1 for the Company�s accounting
policy regarding intangible assets):

Amount

Intangible assets at December 31, 2000 10,656
Acquisitions during fiscal 2001 269
Amortization expense (876)

Intangible assets at December 31, 2001 10,049
Acquisitions during fiscal 2002 1,774
Amortization expense (945)

Intangible assets at December 31, 2002 10,878
Acquisitions during fiscal 2003 10,726
Amortization expense (1,297)

Intangible assets at December 31, 2003 $ 20,307
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The above amounts which follow Acquisitions during fiscal 2001/2002 represent the total cash consideration paid during the period for product
acquisitions and certain related capitalized expenses incurred in connection with such acquisitions.

The following schedule represents the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of the intangible assets recognized in connection
with product acquisitions. Intangible assets are amortized over their expected useful lives of 15 years:

2003 2002

Gross carrying amount $ 24,791 $ 14,065
Accumulated amortization (4,484) (3,187)

$ 20,307 $ 10,878

The following schedule represents future amortization charges related to intangible assets recognized in connection with product acquisitions:

Year ending December 31,

2004 $ 1,710
2005 1,710
2006 1,710
2007 1,710
2008 1,710
Thereafter 11,757

$ 20,307

The following schedule represents the Company�s obligations under product acquisition agreements:

Amount

Obligations under acquisition agreements at December 31, 2000 4,203
Additional obligations acquired 422
Payments on existing obligations (3,725)
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Obligations under acquisition agreements at December 31, 2001 900
Additional obligations acquired �  
Payments on existing obligations (650)

Obligations under acquisition agreements at December 31, 2002 250
Additional obligations acquired 10,726
Payments on existing obligations (6,176)

Obligations under acquisition agreements at December 31, 2003 $ 4,800

Future commitments on obligations under product acquisition agreements are due as follows:

December 31 Amount

2004 $ 3,800
2005 1,000

$ 4,800

(10) Commitments

The Company has entered into an employment agreement with an officer that commenced January 15, 2003 and expires December 31, 2007.
The employment agreement provides for fixed minimum salary levels for each year of the agreement through
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January 15, 2007. The annual increase for the years ended January 15, 2005 and 2006 shall not be less than the increase in an agreed upon cost
of living index.

The Company also entered into an employment agreement with an officer of one of its subsidiaries. The employment agreement commenced
February 3, 2003 and expires February 2, 2006. The employment agreement provided for a fixed minimum salary through 2003. Annual
increases are at the discretion of the board of directors.

Amounts to be paid under those employment agreements are summarized as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2004 $ 667
2005 674
2006 467
2007 447

$ 2,255

The Company has an operating lease for its corporate headquarters expiring October 2009. The Company also maintains a lease on four regional
sales office expiring January 2005. These leases contain a provision to pass through to the Company the Company�s pro-rata share of the
building�s operating expenses. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $346 $322 and $298. Future minimum
lease payments under the terms of the leases are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2004 $ 255
2005 239
2006 250
2007 261
2008 273
Thereafter 213

$ 1,491
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In May 2001, the Company entered into a long-term lease agreement with E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Company (�DuPont�) associated with the
acquisition of a manufacturing facility from DuPont. The lease is a long-term ground lease of twenty-five acres in Axis, Alabama. The lease
term is twenty years beginning May 18, 2001, with up to five automatic renewals of three years each for a total of thirty-five years. The lease
payment consists of a minimum annual payment of $10. The Company must also pay an additional amount based on production volume at the
leased premises until December 31, 2007.

(11) Research and Development

Research and development expenses were $4,669, $2,940 and $2,433 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

(12) Settlement(s)

The Company settled negotiations with an insurance carrier related to the recovery of certain costs pertaining to the completed remediation work
of a railroad siding, which resulted in a net gain before taxes of $208 in 2001. The Company also settled a dispute over date compensation,
which resulted in a net gain before taxes of $88 in 2001.

(13) Gain on Sale of Emission Credits

In 1986, the Company constructed an incinerator to destroy a waste gas that had been previously discharged into the atmosphere pursuant to an
air permit. By reducing this emission, the Company was entitled to transfer a portion of its emission credits to others. The Company recognized
a net gain before taxes of $466 in 2001 as a result of sales of a portion of its credits.
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(14) Stock Options

Incentive Stock Option Plans (�ISOP�)

Under the terms of the Company�s ISOP, under which options to purchase 1,311,000 shares of common stock can be issued, all key employees
are eligible to receive non-assignable and non-transferable options to purchase shares. The exercise price of any option may not be less than the
fair market value of the shares on the date of grant; provided, however, that the exercise price of any option granted to an eligible employee
owning more than 10% of the outstanding common stock may not be less than 110% of the fair market value of the shares underlying such
option on the date of grant. No options granted may be exercisable more than ten years after the date of grant. The options granted generally vest
evenly over a three to five year period, beginning from the date of the grant.

During 2003 and 2002, the Company granted incentive stock options to purchase an aggregate of 423,750 and 16,875 shares of common stock to
key employees. These options are non-assignable and non-transferable, are exercisable over a seven-year period from the date of grant and vest
in five equal annual installments commencing one year from the date of grant.

Nonstatutory Stock Options (�NSSO�)

During 2003 and 2002, the Company granted nonstatutory stock options to purchase an aggregate of 26,014 and 18,150 shares of common stock.
These options are non-assignable and non-transferable, are exercisable over a five year period from the date of grant and vested upon grant.

Option activity within each plan is as follows:

Incentive
Stock Option

Plans

Non-

Statutory

Stock
Options

Weighted
Average
Price

Per Share

Balance outstanding, December 31, 2000 416,663 28,622 $ 1.82
Options granted, range from $2.22�$4.70 308,651 19,623 $ 4.70
Options exercised, range from $1.93�$4.59 (4,000) (26,000) $ (2.57)
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Balance outstanding, December 31, 2001 721,314 22,245 $ 3.05
Options granted, range from $8.06�$8.51 16,875 18,150 $ 8.34
Options exercised, range from $2.03�$8.06 (129,347) (9,542) $ (2.15)

Balance outstanding, December 31, 2002 608,842 30,853 $ 3.48
Options granted, range from $9.38�$21.60 423,750 26,014 $ 13.61
Options exercised, range from $1.80�$12.47 (202,860) (6,049) $ (4.16)

Balance outstanding, December 31, 2003 829,732 50,818 $ 9.31

Information relating to stock options at December 31, 2003 summarized by exercise price is as follows:

Outstanding

Weighted Average

Exercisable

Weighted Average

Exercise Price Per Share Shares
Life

(Months)
Exercise
Price Shares

Exercise
Price

Incentive Stock Option Plan:
$1.80�$2.22 97,208 42 $ 2.20 68,334 $ 2.19
$4.70 291,909 24 $ 4.70 116,762 $ 4.70
$8.51 16,865 15 $ 8.51 4,219 $ 8.51
$9.38�$21.60 423,750 6 $ 15.60 124,994 $ 9.87

829,732 14 $ 11.05 314,309 $ 6.38

Nonstatutory Stock Options:
$1.72�$2.46 12,703 48 $ 1.93 12,703 $ 1.93
$4.59 3,630 30 $ 4.59 3,630 $ 4.59
$8.07 10,890 8 $ 8.07 10,890 $ 8.07
$12.47�$18.80 23,595 4 $ 14.58 23,595 $ 12.47

50,818 20 $ 11.97 50,818 $ 10.48
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AMERICAN VANGUARD CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

(15) Subsequent Event

On March 16, 2004, the Company announced that the Board of Directors declared a 3 for 2 stock split and a cash dividend of $.12 per share
($.08 as adjusted for 3 for 2 stock split). Both dividends will be distributed on April 16, 2004 to stockholders of record at the close of business
on March 26, 2004. The cash dividend will be paid on the number of shares outstanding prior to the 3 for 2 stock split. Stockholders entitled to
fractional shares resulting from the stock split will receive cash in lieu of such fractional share based on the closing price of the Company�s stock
on March 26, 2004. Accordingly, all weighted average share and per share amounts have been restated to reflect the stock split.

(16) Quarterly Data�Unaudited

Quarterly Data�2003 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Net sales $ 27,342 $ 25,944 $ 32,948 $ 38,629
Gross profit 11,368 11,953 14,857 20,696
Net income 1,224 1,725 2,815 4,499
Basic net income per share .14 .20 .32 .50
Diluted net income per share .13 .19 .30 .48

Quarterly Data�2002

Net sales $ 19,018 $ 20,397 $ 29,841 $ 31,415
Gross profit 7,706 9,355 11,960 14,854
Net income 799 1,125 1,765 3,360
Basic net income per share .09 .13 .20 .39
Basic and diluted net income per share .09 .12 .19 .38
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ITEM 15
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31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

36

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN VANGUARD CORP - Form 10-K/A

69


